SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 5, 2017
9:02 a.m

9:02: 35 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator dick Bishop, Vice-Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senator Peter M cciche

Senat or Donny d son

Senat or Nat asha von | mhof

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senat or John Coghill, Sponsor; Jordan Shilling, Staff to
Senat or Coghi | I ; Joan W/ kerson, Depar t ment of Law;
Representative Andy Josephson, Sponsor; Lisa Wissler,
Staff, Representative Josephson; Kathie Wsserman, Al aska
Muni ci pal League, Juneau; Brandy Johnson, Self, Juneau;
Jake Metcal fe, Executive Director, Public Service Enployees
Associ ation (PSEA), Local 803; Jeff Brink, Police Oficer,
Menber, PSEA Local 803, Juneau.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

David Pruhs, City of Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Rebecca Shwanke,

Sel f, d enal | en; Tom Wescott, Pr esi dent, Al aska
Prof essional Firefighters, Eagle R ver; Paul Kendall, Self,
Anchor age.

SUMVARY

SB 48 I NS. FOR DEPENDS. OF DECEASED FI RE/ POLI CE



SB 48 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

CSHB 23( FI N) am
I NS. FOR DEPENDS. OF DECEASED FI RE/ POLI CE

CSHB 23(FIN)am was HEARD and HELD in commttee
for further consideration.

#sb48
SENATE BI LL NO. 48

"An Act creating a fund in the Departnent of Public
Safety; providing for paynent of certain nedical
i nsurance premuns for surviving dependents of certain
police officers or firefighters who di e in the line
of duty; and providing for an effective date."

9:04: 07 AM

SENATOR JOHN COGHI LL, SPONSOR, felt that the I|egislation
was i medi ately necessary. He explained the bill.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced that the senate version did
not contain the option for the Permanent Fund deposit.

Senat or Coghil| agreed.

9:10:39 AM

JORDAN SHILLI NG STAFF TO SENATOR COGHI LL, explained the
Sectional Analysis (copy on file):

Section 1

Sec. 39.60.010 - Peace Oficer and Firefighter
Survivors’ Fund.

The peace officer and firefighter survivors
fund is established for the purpose of
payi ng major medical insurance premuns for
an eligible surviving spouse or dependent
child of a peace officer or firefighter.

The Departnment of Public Safety shall create
two separate accounts wthin the fund: a

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



Sec.
conmi

Sec.

Sec.

state enployee account and a nunicipal
enpl oyee account. The accounts can consi st
of | egi sl ative appropri ations, private
donati ons, and runici pal contributions.

39.60.020 - Powers and duties of t he
ssi oner.

Annual |y, the Conm ssioner of the Departnent
of Public Safety shall determ ne the anpunt
of noney necessary to pay premuns to
el i gi ble surviving dependents.

39. 60. 030 — Paynent aut hori zed.
The Conmi ssioner of the Departnment of Public
Safety nmay use noney in the fund to pay
naj or nmedi cal i nsurance prem umns for
el i gi bl e surviving dependents.

39.60.040 - Eigibility of survi vi ng

dependents of peace officers and firefighters for
nmedi cal insurance prem uns.

Wthin the first 30 days follow ng a death,
the surviving dependent is presunmed eligible
for the benefit. A surviving dependent may
apply to the comm ssioner for paynent of
nmaj or nmedi cal i nsurance prem uns. The
conm ssioner wll make a determnation of
eligibility within 30 days of receiving the
appl i cation. Annual | y, t he conmi ssi oner
shal |l determ ne continued eligibility.

A surviving dependent is eligible if:

Senat e Fi nance

0 At the time of death, the peace
officer or firefighter was a year-
round, permanent full-tinme enployee of
the state or nmunicipality that has
opted into this fund;

0 At the tine of death, the surviving

dependent was recei vi ng enpl oyer -
sponsored nedi cal insurance benefits;

Comm ttee 3 04/05/17 9:02 A M



0 The proxi mate cause of the enployee’s
death is a bodily injury sustained or a
hazar d under gone whi | e in t he
performance and within the scope of the
enpl oyee’ s duties; and

0 The injury or hazard is not the
proximate result of wllful negligence
by the enpl oyee.

Co- Chair MacKinnon queried the definition of "approximte
cause." M. Schilling stated that it was a | egal concept.

9:14: 50 AM

JOAN W LKERSQN, DEPARTMENT OF LAW expl ai ned t hat
"approxi mate cause" was an event sufficiently related to a
legally recognizable injury to be held to be the cause of
that injury. She stated that it was the second half of a
two-part causation analysis. The two types of causation in
the law were "cause and effect”, or that an injury would
not have happed but for an event.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop wondered whether the enployee was also
covered off-duty. Ms. WIlkerson replied that the coverage
applied to an officer who was killed in the line of duty,
whet her they were paid or not.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon wondered whet her the person was covered,
if they were nurdered because they are a police officer.
Ms. Wl kerson replied that it would be consi dered.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon | ooked at page 3, line 17, and noted
that there was a nenber of her comunity whose famly
suffered a loss of a firefighter. They struggled under a
wor ker's conpensation issue to say that the hazard occurred
while the firefighter was on duty. She remarked that there
was sone information about the higher Ilikelihood to get
cancer with exposure to hazards. She wondered whether that
idea was included in the idea of "hazard undergone." Ms.
Wl kerson replied in the affirmative.

9:20: 32 AM

M. Shilling continued to discuss the Sectional Analysis:

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



A surviving spouse becones pernanently
ineligible by becomng eligible to receive
commensurate insurance coverage by other
nmeans, having received the benefit for 10
years, or reaching 65 vyears of age -
whi chever cones first.

A survi vi ng dependent child becones
permanently ineligible by becomng eligible
to receive mgjor nedical insurance coverage
by other means, or reaching 26 years of age
— whi chever cones first.

The conmm ssioner shall pay the premum for
the 1level of nmaj or nedi cal i nsurance
coverage existing at the tinme of death

beginning the first nonth follow ng the date
t he dependent applied to the fund. Paynent
of premuns wll be made directly to the
medi cal insurance provider.

Sec. 39. 60. 050 - Muni ci pal el ection to
participate in peace officer and firefighter
survivors’ fund.

A municipality may elect to participate in
the fund. The conm ssioner shall determ ne
t he anount and frequency of t he
muni cipality’s required contributions to the
fund, based on the anticipated cost. A
surviving dependent is not eligible for
paynents unless the nunicipality opts into
t he fund.

Sec. 39.60.060 — Eligibility of municipal peace
officers and firefighters.

A surviving dependent of a peace officer or
firefighter who was enpl oyed by a
muni cipality may be eligible for payment if
the nunicipality elects to participate in
t he fund.

Sec. 39.60.070 -  Terns of agr eenment by
muni cipality to participate in fund.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



An agreenent between the conmm ssioner and a
muni ci pality nust include a requirenment that
the nmunicipality contribute to the fund as
needed, be current with contributions, and
conply with all other rules and regul ati ons.

Sec. 39.60.190 — Definitions.

Definitions for “chil d”, “conmm ssi oner”
“departnent”, “dependent ", “firefighter”
“fund”, “peace officer”, and “surviving
spouse”.

Section 2

AS 44.41.020 - Powers and duties of departnent
(new subsecti on)

The Departnment of Public Safety shall nanage
and adm nister the fund in cooperation wth
t he Departnent of Adm nistration.

9:24: 08 AM

Senator (O son wondered whether Village Public Safety
Oficers (VPSO were covered in the legislation. M.
Schilling replied that the VPSOs were not covered, because
they were not state enpl oyees.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon | ooked at page 5, line 23. She stressed
that the VPSOs were not able to nake arrests. She noted
that "peace officers” included nore kinds of police.

Senator Mcciche noted that the difference between the two
bills was related to the ineligibility of the surviving
spouse. He queried the reason for the surviving spouse
becom ng pernmanently ineligible after ten years. Senator
Coghill responded that there was an exam nation of the
ot her states' provisions and the conparison in the state on
ot her issues.

Senator Mcciche wondered if there was a consideration to
expand the allowance to provide coverage, should there be a

mnor child in the household. Senator Coghill replied in
the affirmative. He stated that the child would still be
cover ed.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



Senator Dunleavy queried the difference between VPSCs and
VPGs. Senator Coghill replied that they were both normally
under contract with a private organi zation

Senator von Inhof noted that there were six famlies that
the state was providing benefits, and each year the noney

was appropriated for the famlies. Senator Coghill deferred
to M. Schilling, but was sure about three famlies.
M. Schilling explained that the fiscal note outlined the

nunber of famlies that would be covered by the
| egislation. He stated that the governor had paid coverage
for sonme of the famlies, but did not have the details.

9:29: 50 AM

Senator von | mhof wondered whether the npdel was determ ned
that $70,000 was sufficient. Senator Coghill replied that
t he nodel i ng was based on the current data.

Senator Mcciche |ooked at page 3, line 13. He wondered
whet her an wunborn child was included in the benefit.
Senator Coghill hoped that it would include the unborn
chi |l d.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon | ooked at page 6, Section 2, line 18

She wondered why the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS) and
not Departnent of Administration (DOA) to nonitor a fund.
M. Schilling did not know the reason for t hat
determnation. He stated that there was a hope that DOA
woul d work wi th DPS, because of their expertise.

Senator Coghill stated that wunder the Public Enployees
Retirement System (PERS), DPS had the responsibility of
notice, qualification, and adm ni strati on.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon shared that she did not believe the
determ nati on was appropriately assigned.

9:35:41 AM
M. Schilling continued to discuss the Sectional Analysis:
Section 3

Uncodi fied | aw

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



The commi ssioner of public safety may adopt
regul ati ons necessary to inplenent secs. 1 and 2
of this Act. The regulations take effect under
the Admi nistrative Procedure Act, but not before
the effective date of sections 1 and 2.

Section 4

Effective date

Section 3 takes effect imediately.
Section 5

Effective date

Sections 1 and 2 take effect July 1, 2017.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon expressed concern regar di ng t he
effective date. She wondered whether the transition and
regul ati ons would account for the three famlies that were
currently advocating for change for other famlies. M.
Schilling replied that the legislation's intent was to be
applied retroactively to provide the benefit for the
famlies outlined in the fiscal note.

Senator Coghill stressed that there was an eligibility
issue within the bill

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that she knew of another famly
that suffered a loss due to cancer, so she expressed
concern over the limt of the provision.

#hb23
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 23(FIN) am

"An Act creating a fund in the Departnent of Public
Safety; providing for paynent of certain nedical
i nsurance premuns for surviving dependents of certain
peace officers or firefighters who die in the |ine of
duty; relating to contributions from permanent fund
dividends to the peace officer and firefighter
survivors' fund; and providing for an effective date.”

9:39: 02 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



REPRESENTATI VE ANDY JOSEPHSON, SPONSOR, thanked Senator
Coghill and Representative MIllett. He explained the bill

Co- Chair MacKinnon remarked that the senate bill had the
| oss of the spouse coverage at ten years, but the children
would be <covered to age 26. Representative Josephson
agr eed.

9:46: 34 AM

LI SA VEI SSLER, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JOSEPHSON, discussed
t he Sectional Analysis (copy on file):

Section 1.

Sec. 39. 60. 005. Establishes that the state and
muni ci palities shall pay nedical insurance prem uns
for the surviving dependents of eligible peace
officers and firefighters.

Sec. 39. 60. 010. Peace of ficer and firefighter
survivors’ fund established. Establishes a peace
officer and firefighter survivors’ fund in the
Department of Public Safety to pay the nedica
i nsurance premuns on behalf of eligible survivors of
a peace officer or firefighter. Prem um paynents are
made to the deceased’s forner enployer-sponsored
medi cal insurance provider. The fund consists of
donati ons and ot her noney appropriated to the fund.

The legislature nmay nmake appropriations to the fund.
The funds do not | apse. Money appropriated to the fund
may be spent for the purposes of the fund wthout
further appropriation.

Sec. 39.60.020. Powers and duties of the comm ssioner.
The conmi ssioner of Public Safety annually determ nes
the amount of noney needed to pay premuns for
eligible survivors and associated admnistrative
costs. The comm ssioner shall adopt regulations to
i npl enent the chapter.

Sec. 39.60.030. Paynent authorized. The comr ssioner
may use noney in the fund's state account to pay
medi cal insurance premuns for eligible survivors of a
state enployee, 50 percent of the premium for a

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



surviving dependent of an enployee of a snall
muni ci pality, and for admnistrative costs.

Sec. 39.60.040. Eligibility of surviving dependents of
peace officers and firefighters for nedical insurance
prem unms. A surviving dependent of a deceased peace
officer or firefighter may apply to the Departnent of
Public Safety conm ssioner for paynment of their
medi cal insurance premuns. The survivor is eligible
for premum paynents if, at the tine of death, the
deceased was a full-tine enployee; the survivor was
recei ving enpl oyer - sponsor ed nmedi cal i nsurance
benefits; the proxinmate cause of death was a bodily
injury or hazard incurred while in the performance and
within the scope of the enployee’s duties; and the
infjury or hazard was not the proximate result of
wi Il ful negligence by the enpl oyee.

A surviving spouse becones ineligible for paynents
from the fund when the spouse becones eligible for
maj or nedi cal insurance coverage by other neans or is
eligible for Medicare, whichever cones first. Except
for a child who is totally and pernmanently disabled, a
dependent <child becones ineligible when they becone
eligible for major medical insurance coverage by other
nmeans or reaches 26 years of age, whichever cones
first.

The comm ssioner shall pay the premum for the |eve
of nedical coverage that applied at the tinme of the
enpl oyee’ s death. Paynents are made to the applicable
enpl oyer medi cal insurance provider.

Municipalities wth populations of 10,000 or nore
shall pay the full premum for eligible dependents of
muni ci pal peace officers and firefighters. For small
muni ci palities with populations |ess than 10,000, the
commi ssi oner shall pay 50 percent of the prem uns, and
the nmunicipality pays the other half.

9:50: 29 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether the nmjor nedical was
consistent with the senate version, and the house bill did
not address only nmajor nmedical. M. Wissler replied that
the bill contained only "nedical", because it broadened the

definition to include the coverage at the tine of the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



enpl oyee's death. She stressed that nmjor nedical could be
nore restrictive.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon requested a reason for the sane prem um
costs for the different insurances.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon explained that she was |ooking at the
difference in the coverage between the house and senate
ver si ons.

Senator Mcciche surmsed that the bill covered the spouse
until that spouse was eligible for nmedical care. He
remarked that that the senate bill did not have that

provision, but had the sane fiscal note. He wondered
whet her there was additional cost to covering a spouse. M.
Weissler replied that it was an unknown.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon explained that famly coverage may be
t he sane regardl ess of including the spouse in the policy.

Ms. Weissler continued to discuss the Sectional Analysis:
Sec. 39.60.190. Definitions.
The definitions include a definition of “peace
of ficer” that means a peace officer, chief of police,
regional public safety officer, correctional officer,

correctional superintendent, or probation officer.

A “firefighter” is defined an enployee occupying a
position as a firefighter or fire chief.

A “small nunicipality” means a nunicipality with a
popul ation of |ess than 10, 000.

9:54: 21 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon wondered whether the definition of
"| ar ge muni ci pality" and "smal | muni ci pality" wer e
consistent in statute. M. Wissler responded that the
definitions were created, and based on conversations wth
t he Al aska Muni ci pal League.

Senator O son queried the nunber of smaller nunicipalities
were participating in the 50 percent cost share. M.
Wi ssler replied that approximately 37 communities enployed
police officers, and unknown how many enploy firefighters.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



Ms. Weissler continued to discuss the Sectional Analysis:

Sections 2 to 5. Amends AS 43.23.062 to add the peace
officer and firefighter survivors’ fund as an
or gani zati on i ncl uded in t he Per manent Fund
contribution |ist.

Section 6. Anmends AS 44.41.020 to add that the
Departnment of Public Safety shall nanage the peace
officer and firefighter survivors’ fund in cooperation
with the Departnment of Admnistration. The Departnent
of Public Safety shall establish standardized forns
for use in admnistering the fund.

Section 7. Transition: Regulations. The comm ssioner
of public safety nmmy adopt regulations to inplenent
t he Act.

Section 8. Section 7 takes effect imedi ately.

Section 9. O her than section 8, the Act takes effect
July 1, 2017.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon noted that the sponsor's intent was not
in the bill. Representative Josephson replied the bil
seened to indicate that the application allowed for
retroactivity.

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried the paraneters of the "look
back" provision. Representative Josephson replied that both
bills needed to clarify that provision. He remarked that
the administration was dealing with the coverage in a
"patch wor k" way.

Co-Chair MacKinnon hoped to outline the tw bills by
conponent .

10: 00: 24 AM
AT EASE

10: 01: 07 AM
RECONVENED

10: 01: 16 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



Co-Chair MacKinnon |ooked at the fiscal note dated
2/ 17/ 2017 for Fund Capitalization with the allocation to
the Survivor's Fund. She noted that the |anguage in the
last line of the third paragraph stated that "in the |ast
45 years, 40 peace officers, and 11 firefighters have been
killed in Aaska in the Iline of duty. None of the
firefighters would be eligible because they were either
federal enployees, volunteer firefighters, or wth the
Anchorage Fire Departnent." She stressed that the issue was
statewide, and local comunities could opt into in the
future

Senator Mcciche recalled that the sponsor stated that an
ineligible mght beconme re-eligible, and wondered where
that provision was in the bill. M. Wissler replied that
SB 48 outlined that the person would becone permanently
ineligible, and HB 23 did not have that qualifier.

Co-Chair MacKinnon felt that the lack of |anguage inclusion
did not specifically allow for that re-eligibility.

Representati ve Josephson comment ed t hat t he fallen
firefighter would be eligible for coverage, and the
muni ci pal ity m ght cover their claimunder HB 23.

Co- Chair MacKinnon stressed that it yet to be determ ned.
She did not want to set false expectations for famlies.

#sb48
#hb23
SENATE BI LL NO. 48

"An Act creating a fund in the Departnment of Public
Safety; providing for paynent of certain nedical
i nsurance premuns for surviving dependents of certain
police officers or firefighters who die in the |ine of
duty; and providing for an effective date."

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 23(FIN) am

"An Act creating a fund in the Departnent of Public
Safety; providing for paynent of certain nedical
i nsurance premuns for surviving dependents of certain
peace officers or firefighters who die in the |ine of
duty; relating to contributions from permanent fund
dividends to the peace officer and firefighter
survivors' fund; and providing for an effective date.”

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



10: 06: 54 AM

APUBLI C TESTI MONY

10: 06: 50 AM

KATH E WASSERVAN, ALASKA MUNI Cl PAL LEAGUE, JUNEAU, spoke in
specific support of SB 48, because it gave the ability for
muni cipalities to elect to be a part of the program She
remarked that the nunicipality has historically "stepped
up" after a fatality. She felt that a mandate took on a
different direction. She remarked that there were sone
small nmunicipalities who were not able to pay their
wor ker's conpensation bills, so requiring a 50 percent
paynment nmay be a probl em

Senat or M cci che wondered whether her statenments reflected
any other municipality besides Juneau and Fairbanks. Ms.
Wasserman responded that the comments reflected the Al aska
Muni ci pal League's general principle, which was that
muni ci palities could elect to do as they choose according
their finances. She stressed that rmunicipalities would not
support unfunded mandat es.

10: 09: 08 AM

BRANDY JOHNSQON, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of the
bills. She stated that she had a deceased husband who died
in the line of duty.

10:13: 45 AM

JAKE METCALFE, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, PUBLI C SERVI CE EMPLOYEES
ASSCCI ATION (PSEA), LOCAL 803, spoke in support of the
bills.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the reason why the benefit was
not bargained into contracts. M. Metcalfe replied that the
public service enployees wrked for the state and
muni ci palities. The enployees were hired to do a dangerous
job, and they could be killed protecting Al aska citizens.
He stressed that the PSEA did not enploy those people,
rather only represented them

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether PSEA negotiated health
care benefits. M. Metcalfe replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon concurred wth his coments. M.
Metcal fe stressed that PSEA did not hire the enpl oyees.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon  wondered  whet her the issue had
previously been put forward. M. Metcalfe replied that Tier
1 level provided the benefit to famlies. The renaining
tiers did not provide that benefit.

10: 20: 37 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon asked when Tier 2 was enacted. M.
Metcal fe replied that Tier 1 ended in 1986, so Tier 2 would
have occurred at that point. He shared that famlies were
often too overwhelned by the tragedy to consider the
benefits. He remarked that many people may have not known
who or how to reach out.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether there was an issue
since 1986 to know whether there was coverage. M. Metcalfe
coul d not speak to that timefrane.

Co-Chair MacKinnon wanted to know whether there was a
| oophol e about why the conversation did not occur in that
timeframe. She wondered why the union did not address the
i ssue sooner. M. Metcalfe responded that PSEA could only
negotiate contracts for three years with the state. There
woul d be a renegotiation of the benefit. He stated that a
statute woul d be pernmanent.

10: 26: 19 AM

Senator M cciche wondered whether the survivor benefits
were |ost between Tiers 2 and 3. M. Metcalfe replied that
only Tier 1 had the benefit.

Senator Mcciche surmsed that the nunber in the fiscal
note may be |ess, because sone of those officers may have
been Tier 1. M. Metcal fe agreed.

10: 27: 32 AM

JEFF BRI NK, POLI CE OFFI CER, MEMBER, PSEA LOCAL 803, JUNEAU,
spoke in support of the bills.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



10: 28: 41 AM

DAVI D PRUHS, CTY OF FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via
t el econference), spoke in support of the bills.

10: 31: 39 AM

REBECCA SHWANKE, SELF, GLENALLEN (via teleconference),
spoke in support of the bills.

10: 33: 53 AM
AT EASE

10: 34: 03 AM
RECONVENED

10: 34: 19 AM

TOM WESCOTT, PRESIDENT, ALASKA PROFESSI ONAL Fl REFI GHTERS,
EAGLE RIVER (via teleconference), testified in support of
the bills.

10: 35: 57 AM

PAUL KENDALL, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke
agai nst the bills.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

10: 43: 23 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stressed that the nmjor medical coverage
nmust be addressed. She remarked that the paynent
information was an issue.

Senator Mcciche wanted to understand the retroactive
benefits, and the possible additional costs.

Co-Chair MacKinnon renmarked that the issue of an unborn
child benefit would be covered.

Senator von |Inmhof queried the current disability paynents
related to an injury.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wanted to know the | anguage used in Tier
1

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



Senator Dunl eavy wondered whether the step-children were
i ncl uded.

Co-Chair MacKinnon replied that step-children were covered
in at least of the bills.

Senator O son comented that the smaller comunities did
not often have a police officer, so it fell on the state
troopers to address an issue.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced that anmendnents were due by
noon the follow ng Friday.

SB 48 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

CSHB 23 (FI Ny am was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
10: 50: 03 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:50 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 04/ 05/ 17 9:02 A M



